
MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
100-B Drake’s Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904  Telephone: 415-464-2090  Fax: 415-464-2094 

www.marinhealthcare.org      info@marinhealthcare.org 

 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2024 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 

The agenda for the meeting will be posted and distributed at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require accommodations to participate in a District meeting 

please contact the District office at 415-464-2090 (voice) or 415-464-2094 (fax) at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Meetings open to the public are recorded and the recordings are posted on the District web site. 

   
Board of Directors: 
Chair: Edward Alfrey, MD (Div. 5) 
Vice Chair: Ann Sparkman, RN/BSN, JD (Div. 2) 
Secretary: Jennifer Rienks, PhD (Div. 4) 
Directors: Brian Su, MD (Div. 3) 
 Samantha Ramirez, BSW (Div. 1) 
Staff: 
David Klein, MD, MBA, CEO 
Eric Brettner, CFO 
Colin Leary, General Counsel 
Tricia Lee, Executive Assistant 

Location: 
MarinHealth Medical Center 
Conference Center 
250 Bon Air Road, Greenbrae CA 
 
Public option: Zoom video: 
https://mymarinhealth.zoom.us/join 
Meeting ID: 987 7245 6255 
Passcode: 156223 
Or via Zoom telephone: 1-669-900-9128 
 

 AGENDA 
 Presenter Tab # 

5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call Alfrey 
 
2. General Public Comment Alfrey 

 Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items NOT on the agenda. 
 Statements are limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. 
 Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes. 

 
3. Approve Agenda (action) Alfrey 
 
4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 10, 2024 (action) Alfrey   #1 
 
5.  Bloom Energy Borrowing    Klein/ Brettner  #2 
 
6.  MHD Board of Directors Resolution No. 2024-05 Approving MarinHealth       Klein/Brettner   #3 
     Medical Center Loan from Bank of America in connection with Bloom Energy  
     Financing (action)     
 
7.   Healthcare Advocacy and Emerging Challenges and Trends Klein 
  
8. Committee Reports 

A. Finance & Audit Committee (did not meet) Su  
B. Lease, Building, Education & Outreach Committee (met Sept. 30) Rienks 

 
 

https://mymarinhealth.zoom.us/join


MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
100-B Drake’s Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904  Telephone: 415-464-2090  Fax: 415-464-2094 

www.marinhealthcare.org      info@marinhealthcare.org 

 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2024 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 

The agenda for the meeting will be posted and distributed at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require accommodations to participate in a District meeting 

please contact the District office at 415-464-2090 (voice) or 415-464-2094 (fax) at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Meetings open to the public are recorded and the recordings are posted on the District web site. 

 
 
 
 
9. Reports 

A. District CEO’s Report Klein 
B. Hospital CEO’s Report Klein 
C. Chair’s and Board Members’ Reports All 

 
10. Agenda Suggestions for Future Meetings All 
 
11. Adjournment of Regular Meeting Alfrey 
 
Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, November 13, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 1 
  



 

 
Page 1 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  September 10, 2024  

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Tuesday, September 10, 2024 
MarinHealth Medical Center 

Conference Center 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chair Alfrey called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
Board members present:  Chair Edward Alfrey, MD; Vice Chair Brian Su, MD;  
Secretary Jennifer Rienks, PhD (via Zoom); Ann Sparkman, RN/BSN, JD; Samantha 
Ramirez, BSW  
Staff present:  David Klein, MD, CEO; Eric Brettner, CFO; Colin Leary, General Counsel; 
Tricia Lee, EA 
 

2. General Public Comment 
There was no public comment.  
 

3. Approve Agenda 
Ms. Sparkman moved to approve the agenda as presented. Ms. Ramirez seconded. Vote: all ayes. 
 

4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 13, 2024 
Dr. Su moved to approve the minutes as presented with minor corrections. Ms. Sparkman seconded. 
Vote: all ayes. 

 
5. Review and Approve Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State 

Agencies   
 Resolution to approve designation of applicant’s agent for non-state agencies as it relates to 

FEMA funding. Resolution was presented (Tab #2). Chair Alfrey asked for a motion to 
approve, Dr. Su moved to approve the Resolution. Ms. Sparkman seconded.  Vote: all ayes 

 
6.   Review and Approve Resolution #2024-04 Resolution Honoring Dr. Matthew Willis   

Dr. Alfrey presented the Resolution 2024-04 which honors Dr. Willis for his extraordinary 
service and leadership (Tab #3). The board express their heartfelt appreciation for Dr. Willis’ 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Page 2 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  September 10, 2024  

 
continued dedication to advancing public health and ensuring the safety and well-being of 
Marin County residents while serving as the Public Health Officer. 
 
Dr. Willis expressed gratitude towards Marin Healthcare District and MarinHealth Medical 
Center for their outstanding partnership in achieving shared health and well-being goals.  
  

 Chair Alfrey asked for a motion to approve, Ms. Rienks moved to approve the Resolution. 
Ms. Sparkman seconded.  Vote: all ayes 

 
7.   Healthcare Advocacy and Emerging Challenges and Trends 

Dr. Klein provided an update on SB 977 which focuses on increasing penalties for assault 
and battery against healthcare workers. The bill has been delivered to the governor’s desk 
without amendments.  
 
Assembly Bill 1778, pertains to electric bike safety, primarily impacting Marin County. The 
bill is also pending the governor’s signature, with local county authorities expected to 
implement regulations once signed.  
 
Dr. Klein provided an update to Proposition 35, which aims to protect medical access by 
addressing tax regulations and health insurance. This proposition is still progressing through 
the legislative process.  
 
Dr. Klein also provided an update to SB 1432, sponsored by the California Hospital 
Association (CHA), the bill seeks to extend the timeline for hospitals to comply with the 
2030 seismic construction mandate by up to five years. It has passed the legislature and is 
now awaiting the governor’s approval.  
 
Dr. Klein provided an update on the Rural Healthcare Bill. This bill, supports critical access 
hospitals in financial distress, has passed through legislature. A technical advisory group has 
been established under the Department of Healthcare Services to recommend strategies for 
stabilizing rural healthcare services.  
 

8. Committee Reports 
A. Finance & Audit Committee  

Finance and Audit Committee did not meet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Page 3 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  September 10, 2024  

  
B. Lease, Building, Education and Outreach Committee 

Ms. Rienks provided an update on upcoming and past events.  
• End-Of-Life Planning Seminar: Recently held and highly successful, with 161 

attendees participating both in person and online. There was a strong interest in 
hosting a seminar on assisted death laws in the future. 

• Hypertension Seminar: Scheduled for September 24th. Registration is high, with 82 
attendees confirmed so far. 

• Health Fair: Scheduled for November 2nd in partnership with the Marin City Health 
and Wellness Center. 

• Community Workers Day: Tentatively planned for September, with a date to be 
confirmed. 

• Men’s and Women’s Health Fair: scheduled for November 13th. 
• Careers in Medicine: Scheduled for January 28th. Local schools are actively engaged, 

and transportation arrangements are in place. 

9. Reports 
A. Hospital and District CEO’s Report 
Dr. Klein reported the hospital has experienced increase in volume, with high census 
numbers and emergency department visits over the past few weeks. 

Dr. Klein reported COS (California Ortho and Spine) physical therapy group joined 
MarinHealth.  

The Novato Imaging Center is now fully operational and experiencing high patient volume. 

Dr. Klein reported the Petaluma Hub is scheduled to open for patient care in early December, 
with community events planned in November to celebrate its launch. 

Dr. Klein reported on the recruitment efforts. Recruitment is underway for two new cardiac 
surgeons, a general surgeon, trauma surgeon, and an orthopedic joint surgeon. Process to 
begin to recruit new Vice President of Medical Affairs and Medical Network staff. 

Dr. Klein reported all MRIs are now functional. The MRI magnet on South Eliseo will be 
replaced in the coming months.   

The nuclear medicine camera (spec CT) is nearing licensure and operational readiness. 

Dr. Klein shared the innovation and artificial intelligence task force remains active, exploring 
generative AI and other innovations for the organization. 

 



 

 
Page 4 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  September 10, 2024  

 

The enhanced visitor and weapons management systems are in the final stages of 
implementation. 

Dr. Klein reported the hospital has gone 400 days without a serious patient safety event. 

Dr. Klein noted continuous improvement has been observed in patient experience scores, 
which will be further detailed in the next quarterly report. 

 Dr. Klein reported a recent visit from Fitch Rating Agency was very positive. The team 
conducted an on-site tour of the hospital, showcasing the facility and its operations. 

Dr. Klein reported the New Grad Program is expanding, with 85+ new grad nurses hired and 
a reduced reliance on travel nurses. Imaging remains an area where travelers are still utilized, 
but overall usage is significantly down compared to 2020. 

Dr. Klein shared Dr. Alan Conway was featured in a segment on CBS News for his use of AI 
in vascular surgery, showcasing the hospital’s hybrid room and innovative capabilities. 

B. Chair’s and Board Members’ Reports. 
Ms. Ramirez shared her appreciation for the recent public events held at Pickleweed park.  
While attendance was lower than expected, the quality of interactions and feedback received 
was highly valuable.  

Ms. Ramirez also highlighted her gratitude for the volunteers who consistently demonstrate 
dedication to the community.  

Dr. Alfrey expressed the importance of the board’s involvement in health fairs and 
community events. He noted that interventions at these events have led to early diagnosis and 
improved quality of life for community members. The board’s role extends beyond clinical 
settings and contributes to overall health and well-being in the community. 

Dr. Alfrey also recognized the contributions of volunteers who have been crucial in engaging 
the community during health fairs. He emphasized that these efforts save lives by identifying 
health issues early, educating the public, and connecting individuals to healthcare resources. 

10. Agenda Suggestions for Future Meetings 
There were no further suggestions.  
 

11. Adjournment of Regular Meeting 
Chair Alfrey adjourned the meeting at 6:08 pm. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 2 
 

  



2024 Bloom Energy Financing

October 2024



 We had previously brought the Bloom Energy Project to the board for discussion
 At that time we were exploring a Shared Savings Program to Finance
 That Option proved to be less than optimal

– The Partner required large pay-out even if the project didn’t go forward
– Required down payment of 25% of project or $3.6M
– They would retain the tax of credit of $5.0M
– The remaining amount and the shared savings worked out to interest rate exceeding 12%

 We explored options with Bank of America to finance the project
– They are willing to Finance 100% of the project
– The interest rate expected to be less than 6%. Saving $6.3M in financing costs
– We can make a partial pay down when we receive the tax credit with no pre-payment penalty
– We are able to take the money in two tranches - $3M in November 2024 and the remaining 

$11.5M in June 2025 
– We can use the $5.0M from tax credit to reduce the principle on the loan down to $10M
– They are able to provide an interest only option for the first 12 to 18 months (under 

review/negotiation at this time)
 Allows MarinHealth to retain the 100% of savings and will be debt free after year 10 -

$8.6M benefit

Proposed of  up to $15M Borrowing For Bloom Energy 
Project

2



 Proposed borrowing of up to $15M taxable
 Purpose/Uses: 

– Fund Bloom Energy project of $14.5
– Anticipated savings of $34.7M over 15 years
– Allow MarinHealth to retain the savings from Bloom Energy 

 Proposed structure:
– 10 year loan
– Able to pay down with tax credit without prepayment penalty
– Interest only for initial period (12 to 18 months)
– Interest rate below 6% (rates will vary depending upon market conditions at time of closing)
– Funds will go into escrow account to fund project as invoices paid
– Use tax credit of $5.0M to reduce principle amount

 New Debt Service of $1.3M will be offset by average energy savings of $2.3M
 Impact on debt ratings – Do not anticipate any impact on bond ratings

Proposed $15M Key Considerations

3



Proposed $15M Taxable Borrowing – Impact on Key Metrics

4

FY 2024 
projected

2024 
projected w 

new debt

Debt Service Coverage 2.18                 2.16                 

MADS 2.18                 1.98                 

Debt to Capitalization 58% 59%


2023 (2)

																																BBB		BBB				BBB blended (BBB-,BBB,BBB+)

																				2021		2021										2020		2020				2021		2021		2020		2020

								FY 2023		FY 2022 with new Debt				FY 2024 projected		2024 projected w new debt				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median										S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median		S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median



		Debt Service Coverage						2.94		2.15				2.18		2.16				na		3.7				with PMF						na		4.4				na		4.0		na		3.3



		MADS						1.86		1.75				2.18		1.98				3.4		na										2.8		na				3.7		na		2.7		na



		Debt to Equity						2.55		2.82				2.33		2.62				na		na										na		na				na		na		na		na



		Debt to Capitalization						62%		64%				58%		59%				30.4%		39.2%										29.1%		42.9%				35.3%		41.1%		35.5%		44.6%



		Days Cash on Hand						92.2

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
I updated to included PMF		152				70.4		125.1				172.9		150.3				With PMF						201.4		149.6				185.9		175.7		171.7		166.5



		Cash to Long-term debt						53%		63%				38%		68%				187.1%		106.8%										189.4%		107.3%				148.1%		107.3%		134.1%		105.2%



		Operating Margin						1.1%		0.9%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		Proforma Operating Margin (APEX)						2.3%		2.1%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		EBIDA Margin						4.8%		4.8%				5.9%		5.9%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%



		Proforma EBIDA Margin (APEX/Investments)						8.2%		8.2%				6.7%		6.7%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%

										PMF + MGH

		Days cash								177081				cash and investments

										728885				expenses

										-28173				les depreciation

										700712

										1919.7589041096				expenses per day

										92.2				days cash

								2023						2024		w / New Debt

		Cash												$104,263		$187,263

		LTD						282,033						273,432		276,432

		UNA						170,384						$195,132		$192,132

		MC Cash OE												$540,375		$546,175



		TL												$441,568		$541,568

		TNA												$189,809		$206,809









2023

																																BBB		BBB				BBB blended (BBB-,BBB,BBB+)

																				2021		2021										2020		2020				2021		2021		2020		2020

								FY 2023		FY 2022 with new Debt				FY 2024 projected		FY 2024 Budget with new Debt				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median										S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median		S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median



		Debt Service Coverage						2.94		2.15				2.18		1.78				na		3.7				with PMF						na		4.4				na		4.0		na		3.3



		MADS						1.86		1.75				2.18		1.59				3.4		na										2.8		na				3.7		na		2.7		na



		Debt to Equity						2.55		2.82				2.33		2.62				na		na										na		na				na		na		na		na



		Debt to Capitalization						62%		64%				0%		32%				30.4%		39.2%										29.1%		42.9%				35.3%		41.1%		35.5%		44.6%



		Days Cash on Hand						92.2

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
I updated to included PMF		152				70.4		125.1				172.9		150.3				With PMF						201.4		149.6				185.9		175.7		171.7		166.5



		Cash to Long-term debt						53%		63%				695085%		187%				187.1%		106.8%										189.4%		107.3%				148.1%		107.3%		134.1%		105.2%



		Operating Margin						1.1%		0.9%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		Proforma Operating Margin (APEX)						2.3%		2.1%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		EBIDA Margin						4.8%		4.8%				5.9%		5.9%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%



		Proforma EBIDA Margin (APEX/Investments)						8.2%		8.2%				6.7%		6.7%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%

										PMF + MGH

		Days cash								177081				cash and investments

										728885				expenses

										-28173				les depreciation

										700712

										1919.7589041096				expenses per day

										92.2				days cash

								2023								w / New Debt

		Cash												$104,263		$187,263

		LTD						282,033						$15		$100,015

		UNA						170,384						$195,132		$212,132

		MC Cash OE												$540,375		$546,175



		TL												$441,568		$541,568

		TNA												$189,809		$206,809









Summary

																																BBB		BBB				BBB blended (BBB-,BBB,BBB+)

																				2021		2021										2020		2020				2021		2021		2020		2020

								FY 2022		FY 2022 with new Debt				FY 2023 Budget		FY 2023 Budget with new Debt				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median										S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median				S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median		S&P BBB Median		Fitch BBB Median

		Debt Service Coverage						3.16		2.15				2.60		1.78				na		3.7				with PMF						na		4.4				na		4.0		na		3.3



		MADS						2.35		1.75				2.30		1.59				3.4		na										2.8		na				3.7		na		2.7		na



		Debt to Equity						2.55		2.82				2.33		2.62				na		na										na		na				na		na		na		na



		Debt to Capitalization						55%		64%				54%		62%				30.4%		39.2%										29.1%		42.9%				35.3%		41.1%		35.5%		44.6%



		Days Cash on Hand						74.8

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
I updated to included PMF		135				70.4		125.1				172.9		150.3				With PMF						201.4		149.6				185.9		175.7		171.7		166.5



		Cash to Long-term debt						53%		63%				55%		65%				187.1%		106.8%										189.4%		107.3%				148.1%		107.3%		134.1%		105.2%



		Operating Margin						1.1%		0.9%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		Proforma Operating Margin (APEX)						2.3%		2.1%				0.1%		-0.1%				2.20%		0.40%										0.00%		2.60%				2.50%		2.50%		0.70%		0.80%



		EBIDA Margin						4.8%		4.8%				5.9%		5.9%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%



		Proforma EBIDA Margin (APEX/Investments)						8.2%		8.2%				6.7%		6.7%				9.30%		8.20%										8.20%		9.80%				10.60%		10.80%		8.40%		9.30%

																w / New Debt

		Cash												$104,263		$187,263

		LTD												$190,126		$290,126

		UNA												$163,501		$180,501

		MC Cash OE												$540,375		$546,175



		TL												$441,568		$541,568

		TNA												$189,809		$206,809









proforma

						2022		2022 with Debt				2023		2023 with debt

		Revenue				553,712		553,712				568,600		568,600



		Operating Margin				6,086		5,086				421		(579)



		operating maring proforma				12,801		11,801				421		(579)



		EBIDA				26,425		26,425				33,430		33,430



		ebida proforma				45,415		45,415				37,094		37,094



		Operating Margin				1.1%		0.9%				0.1%		-0.1%



		operating maring proforma				2.3%		2.1%				0.1%		-0.1%



		EBIDA				4.8%		4.8%				5.9%		5.9%



		ebida proforma				8.2%		8.2%				6.7%		6.7%





2023 budget

		MarinHealth Medical Center

		2023 Operating Budget

		Spread by Month



				Jan		Feb		Mar		Apr		May		Jun		Jul		Aug		Sep		Oct		Nov		Dec		Total				2023 Board Approved		Network 2023		Variance

		Operating Revenues

		Inpatient service revenues		120,944,576		111,681,602		128,621,434		117,654,299		126,839,539		125,981,479		125,006,758		133,178,527		130,521,662		129,865,189		128,638,664		130,147,056		1,509,080,787				1,509,073,811				6,976

		Outpatient service revenues		134,621,401		127,629,749		146,907,020		140,535,924		150,771,712		147,557,868		141,255,132		147,850,888		148,578,669		154,571,897		156,000,017		146,878,208		1,743,158,483				1,743,162,436				(3,953)

		Gross patient service revenues		255,565,976		239,311,351		275,528,454		258,190,223		277,611,252		273,539,347		266,261,890		281,029,415		279,100,331		284,437,086		284,638,681		277,025,263		3,252,239,270				3,252,236,247				3,023



		Deductions from revenues		(213,540,152)		(200,286,212)		(231,097,296)		(216,086,456)		(232,340,446)		(228,682,557)		(222,241,855)		(235,201,200)		(233,586,696)		(238,403,173)		(238,921,893)		(231,500,016)		(2,721,887,952)				(2,721,885,422)				(2,530)

		Provision for bad debts		(518,203)		(485,244)		(558,681)		(523,524)		(562,904)		(554,647)		(539,891)		(569,835)		(565,923)		(576,744)		(577,153)		(561,716)		(6,594,465)				(6,594,459)				(6)

		Charity care write-offs		(681,245)		(637,917)		(734,458)		(688,241)		(740,010)		(729,156)		(709,757)		(749,122)		(743,979)		(758,205)		(758,743)		(738,448)		(8,669,281)				(8,669,273)				(8)

		Net patient service revenues		40,826,376		37,901,978		43,138,019		40,892,002		43,967,892		43,572,987		42,770,387		44,509,258		44,203,733		44,698,964		44,380,892		44,225,083		515,087,572				515,087,093				479



		Capitation revenue		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		3,694,153		44,329,830				44,329,830				-

		Contributions		37,836		37,836		37,836		37,836		37,836		37,836		137,836		137,836		137,836		137,836		37,836		37,836		854,036				854,036				-

		Other operating revenues		700,682		666,471		700,682		689,279		700,682		689,279		701,971		700,682		689,279		700,682		689,279		700,682		8,329,651				8,329,651				-

		Net operating revenues		45,259,047		42,300,438		47,570,691		45,313,270		48,400,563		47,994,254		47,304,347		49,041,930		48,725,000		49,231,635		48,802,160		48,657,754		568,601,089				568,600,610				479



		Operating Expenses

		Salaries and wages		18,589,269		16,929,636		19,102,406		18,413,729		19,595,022		19,097,370		19,647,561		20,247,916		19,973,588		20,473,030		20,060,289		20,332,437		232,462,251				234,354,306				(1,892,055)

		Employee benefits		5,315,980		5,212,376		5,353,374		5,298,428		5,387,242		5,352,059		5,391,240		5,430,676		5,403,313		5,449,450		5,387,471		5,409,936		64,391,545				64,003,431				388,114

		Purchased Services		5,290,849		5,265,937		5,310,935		5,358,368		5,391,433		5,420,354		5,411,845		5,422,530		5,429,020		5,424,212		5,428,715		5,410,464		64,564,662				64,733,997				(169,335)

		Purchased Services - Capitation		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		1,731,187		20,774,240				20,774,240				-

		Professional Fees		2,266,116		2,097,354		2,266,116		2,209,862		2,266,116		2,209,862		2,266,116		2,266,116		2,209,862		2,266,116		2,209,862		2,266,116		26,799,613				26,799,613				-

		Supplies		5,771,616		5,489,088		6,316,090		5,909,342		6,259,187		6,219,065		5,979,234		6,429,908		6,360,672		6,393,959		6,398,670		6,061,749		73,588,581				73,582,511				6,070

		Depreciation and amortization		2,369,752		2,368,678		2,365,713		2,333,103		2,326,846		2,297,980		2,297,435		2,293,654		2,290,655		2,288,891		2,288,742		2,282,818		27,804,268				27,804,268		2,547,664		-

		Rentals and leases		773,394		773,394		773,394		773,394		770,646		770,646		770,646		770,646		770,646		765,589		765,589		765,589		9,243,573				9,243,573				-

		Interest		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		625,718		7,508,619				7,508,619				-

		Insurance		196,784		177,740		196,784		190,436		196,784		190,436		196,784		196,784		190,436		196,784		190,436		196,784		2,316,971				2,316,971				(1)

		Utilities		544,915		499,592		552,972		610,720		540,549		540,549		692,634		647,308		667,787		717,480		552,972		495,225		7,062,708				7,062,708				-

		Clinic Support		2,291,467		2,140,547		1,849,162		1,977,307		1,786,192		1,667,465		1,908,373		1,486,276		1,755,250		1,125,881		1,314,650		1,247,261		20,549,831				18,822,626				1,727,205

		Other expenses		901,335		893,746		904,520		896,746		888,746		888,925		988,925		988,925		988,925		988,925		888,925		893,426		11,112,068				11,172,068				(60,000)

		Total Operating Expense		46,668,381		44,204,994		47,348,371		46,328,341		47,765,668		47,011,618		47,907,698		48,537,644		48,397,059		48,447,222		47,843,226		47,718,709		568,178,930				568,178,931				(2)



		Operating income		(1,409,334)		(1,904,555)		222,320		(1,015,071)		634,895		982,636		(603,350)		504,286		327,941		784,413		958,934		939,046		422,159				421,678				481



		Investment income		(195,749)		(176,806)		(195,749)		(189,435)		(195,749)		(189,435)		(195,749)		(195,749)		(189,435)		(195,749)		(189,435)		(195,749)		(2,304,788)				(2,304,788)				-

		Non-Op Income/(Expense)		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-								-

		Income		(1,605,083)		(2,081,361)		26,571		(1,204,506)		439,146		793,201		(799,099)		308,537		138,506		588,664		769,499		743,297		(1,882,629)				(1,883,109)				481



		Operating margin		-3.1%		-4.5%		0.5%		-2.2%		1.3%		2.0%		-1.3%		1.0%		0.7%		1.6%		2.0%		1.9%		0.1%				0.1%				0.0%

		Net margin		-3.5%		-4.9%		0.1%		-2.7%		0.9%		1.7%		-1.7%		0.6%		0.3%		1.2%		1.6%		1.5%		-0.3%				-0.3%				0.0%

		EBIDA		1,390,387		913,036		3,018,002		1,754,316		3,391,710		3,716,900		2,124,054		3,227,909		3,054,879		3,503,274		3,683,960		3,651,833		33,430,258				33,429,778		35,977,442		480

		EBIDA margin		3.1%		2.2%		6.3%		3.9%		7.0%		7.7%		4.5%		6.6%		6.3%		7.1%		7.5%		7.5%		5.9%				5.9%				0.0%



		Bad debt %		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%		-0.20%				-0.20%				0.0%

		Charity %		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%		-0.27%				-0.27%				0.0%

		Collection % w/o Cap		16.0%		15.8%		15.7%		15.8%		15.8%		15.9%		16.1%		15.8%		15.8%		15.7%		15.6%		16.0%		15.8%				15.8%				0.0%

		Collection % WITH Cap		17.4%		17.4%		17.0%		17.3%		17.2%		17.3%		17.5%		17.2%		17.2%		17.0%		16.9%		17.3%		17.2%				17.2%				-0.0%



		Acute discharges		727		672		776		718		777		773		771		823		803		801		776		817		9,234				9,234				-

		Discharge per Cal Day		23.45		24.00		25.03		23.93		25.06		25.77		24.87		26.55		26.77		25.84		25.87		26.35		25.30

		Discharge % of Total		7.9%		7.3%		8.4%		7.8%		8.4%		8.4%		8.3%		8.9%		8.7%		8.7%		8.4%		8.8%		100.0%

		Acute patient days		3,618		3,327		3,801		3,510		3,806		3,758		3,744		4,008		3,928		3,860		3,793		3,967		45,120				45,120				-

		ALOS		4.98		4.95		4.90		4.89		4.90		4.86		4.86		4.87		4.89		4.82		4.89		4.86		4.89				4.89				-

		ADC		116.7		118.8		122.6		117.0		122.8		125.3		120.8		129.3		130.9		124.5		126.4		128.0		123.6				123.6				-

		AOB		246.6		254.6		262.7		256.8		268.7		272.0		257.2		272.8		280.0		272.7		279.8		272.4		266.4				266.4				-

		Adjusted patient days		7,645		7,129		8,142		7,703		8,330		8,160		7,975		8,458		8,399		8,454		8,393		8,444		97,239				97,239				-

		Adjusted discharges		1,536		1,440		1,662		1,576		1,701		1,678		1,642		1,737		1,717		1,754		1,717		1,739		19,900				19,900				-

		OB discharges		119		107		108		124		131		127		137		124		134		148		132		129		1,520

		Psych discharges		42		40		48		44		42		42		43		48		44		50		43		47		533

		ER Admits		647		543		638		578		693		675		702		694		679		628		642		704		7,823

		ER Visits (includes OP & admits)		2,872		2,605		2,920		2,799		3,193		3,030		3,089		2,942		3,021		3,332		3,416		3,359		36,578

		ER Conversion Rate		22.5%		20.8%		21.8%		20.7%		21.7%		22.3%		22.7%		23.6%		22.5%		18.8%		18.8%		21.0%		21.4%

		ER Visits per Cal Day		93		93		94		93		103		101		100		95		101		107		114		108		100

		Surgery Cases		564		549		669		641		632		647		613		639		648		648		667		597		7,514

		Surgery Minutes per Case		111		110		109		107		110		109		110		111		110		111		111		110		110



		Paid FTEs		1,454.51		1,464.33		1,487.46		1,466.00		1,504.48		1,514.67		1,480.95		1,521.20		1,545.42		1,528.82		1,548.96		1,526.19		1,503.74				1,503.58				0.16

		Less Clinic transfer out FTEs		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)				(35.97)				- 0

		Plus Clinic transfer in FTEs		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52				10.52				- 0

		Paid FTEs		1,429.06		1,438.88		1,462.01		1,440.55		1,479.03		1,489.22		1,455.50		1,495.75		1,519.97		1,503.37		1,523.51		1,500.74		1,478.29				1,478.13				0.16

		Paid FTEs Per AOB		5.79		5.65		5.57		5.61		5.50		5.48		5.66		5.48		5.43		5.51		5.45		5.51		5.55				5.55				- 0



		Productive FTEs		1,253.86		1,263.62		1,286.56		1,265.28		1,303.35		1,313.48		1,280.05		1,320.00		1,343.99		1,327.53		1,347.47		1,324.84		1,302.66

		Less Clinic transfer out FTEs		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)		(31.65)

		Plus Clinic transfer in FTEs		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26		9.26

		Productive FTEs		1,231.47		1,241.22		1,264.17		1,242.88		1,280.95		1,291.09		1,257.65		1,297.60		1,321.59		1,305.14		1,325.07		1,302.45		1,280.26

		Productive FTEs Per AOB		4.99		4.87		4.81		4.84		4.77		4.75		4.89		4.76		4.72		4.79		4.74		4.78		4.81



		Paid FTEs		1,454.51		1,464.33		1,487.46		1,466.00		1,504.48		1,514.67		1,480.95		1,521.20		1,545.42		1,528.82		1,548.96		1,526.19		1,503.74

		Less Clinic transfer out FTEs		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)		(35.97)

		Plus Clinic transfer in FTEs		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52		10.52

		Paid FTEs		1,429.06		1,438.88		1,462.01		1,440.55		1,479.03		1,489.22		1,455.50		1,495.75		1,519.97		1,503.37		1,523.51		1,500.74		1,478.29

		Paid FTEs Per AOB excl HRB		5.79		5.65		5.57		5.61		5.50		5.48		5.66		5.48		5.43		5.51		5.45		5.51		5.55



		Average Salary Rate		73.76		74.02		74.08		74.93		75.10		75.16		76.49		76.70		76.98		77.15		77.13		76.77		75.72

		Salaries & benefits % of net revenue		52.8%		52.3%		51.4%		52.3%		51.6%		50.9%		52.9%		52.4%		52.1%		52.7%		52.1%		52.9%		52.2%



		Supply Cost per APD		755		770		776		767		751		762		750		760		757		756		762		718		757

		Variance from FY2023 Total		(2)		13		19		10		(5)		5		(7)		3		0		(0)		6		(39)

		$ impact of variance		(14,092)		93,910		154,081		80,122		(44,905)		44,005		(55,842)		29,368		4,135		(4,157)		47,166		(328,511)

		Supply Cost % of net revenue		12.8%		13.0%		13.3%		13.0%		12.9%		13.0%		12.6%		13.1%		13.1%		13.0%		13.1%		12.5%		12.9%



		Operating Revenue per APD		5,920		5,933		5,842		5,883		5,810		5,882		5,932		5,799		5,801		5,823		5,815		5,762		5,847

		Operating Revenue per Adj Discharge		29,461		29,376		28,617		28,759		28,461		28,595		28,805		28,239		28,376		28,062		28,422		27,980		28,572

		Total Expense per Adj Discharge		30,379		30,699		28,483		29,403		28,087		28,010		29,173		27,949		28,185		27,615		27,864		27,440		28,551

		Inc/Loss per Adj Discharge		(917)		(1,323)		134		(644)		373		585		(367)		290		191		447		558		540		21



		Net Revenue per APD		5,340		5,317		5,298		5,309		5,278		5,340		5,363		5,263		5,263		5,287		5,288		5,237		5,297

		Variance from FY2023 Total		43		19		1		12		(19)		43		66		(34)		(34)		(10)		(9)		(60)

		$ impact of variance		328,972		138,113		6,679		90,036		(157,967)		350,290		527,525		(291,696)		(289,219)		(85,023)		(76,831)		(503,919)





		ADS																														14417442		14417442



		ADS with																														20217442		20217442



		MADS																														16,822,179		16,822,179



		MADS with																														22,622,179		22,622,179



		ADS without																														2.32		2.50



		ADS with																														1.65		1.78



		MADS without																														1.99		2.14



		MADS with																														1.48		1.59





&F	&P of &N	&D, M. Hard




2022 DSC calc

		MarinHealth Medical Center

		Obligated Group Consolidated Statement of Operations

		For the Period Ended: December 31, 2022

		(In Thousands)

												Current Month				Year to Date



		NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

				Revenues, gains, and other support:

						Net patient service revenue 						$   41,432				$   486,139

						Capitation revenue						4,796				41,096

						UCSF revenue						8,980				100,781

						Hospital contracts						616				7,769

						Contributions						85				1,039

						Other						5,322				16,346



				Total revenues, gains, and other support								61,232				653,170						- 0		- 0



				Operating expenses:

						Salaries and wages						21,427				251,646

						Employee benefits						5,401				66,614

						Professional fees						7,850				94,110

						Purchased services						10,901				69,323

						Purchased services - capitation						2,091				17,761

						Supplies						5,737				72,634

						Depreciation and amortization						2,536				25,595

						Rentals and leases						1,600				18,559

						Interest						651				7,396

						Insurance						373				3,869

						Utilities						700				7,824

						Other						1,410				11,753



				Total operating expenses								60,677				647,084						- 0		- 0



				Income/(loss) from operations								554				6,086						- 0		- 0



				Investment in Marin PET/CT LLC								497				497

				Investment income (loss), net								345				(92)

				Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments								(1,286)				(10,328)



		DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES										$   110				$   (3,837)						$   - 0		$   - 0



				Benefit plan related changes								(11,310)				823

				Other								167				1,055

				Sale of MGH/SCA LLC								- 0				(10,941)

				Net assets released from restrictions for plant and equipment								11,190				11,207



		DECREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS										157				(1,693)				23,730



		NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

				Contributions								5,310				5,806

				Net assets released from restrictions								(12,312)				(12,137)



		DECREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS										(7,002)				(6,331)				- 0



		CHANGE IN NET ASSETS										(6,845)				(8,024)				23,730



		NET ASSETS, beginning of year										189,676				196,496



		NET ASSETS, end of year										$   182,831				$   188,472



		EBIDA										3,298				29,154

		EBIDA for Annual Debt Service Coverage Ratio										4,584				39,482



		Annual Debt Service														12,510



		Debt Service Coverage Ratio														3.16

																18,310

																2.1563055707





		MADS without														16822

																2.35





		MADS with														22,622

																1.75





																				Days Cash on Hand				116.4		128.9		98.7		126.3





Consolidating balance sheet

		Marin General Hospital dba MarinHealth Medical Center and Affiliates

		Consolidating Balance Sheet

		For the Period Ended: Dec 31, 2022

		(In Thousands)

																														Marin 

														Marin 				Prima 				Eliminating				Obligated 				General				Eliminating

														General 				Medical				Intercompany				Group				Hospital				Intercompany				Consolidated 				Debt to equity				cash to LTD

														Hospital				Foundation				Adjustments				Balance				Foundation				Adjustments				Balances

		ASSETS

						Cash and cash equivalents								$   26,802				$   8,758				$   - 0				$   35,560				$   9,101				$   - 0				$   44,661				$   118,560				$   186,481

						Short-term investments								67,921				- 0				- 0				67,921				15,806				- 0				83,727

						Patient accounts receivable, net								99,239				992				- 0				100,231				- 0				- 0				100,231

						Contract receivable								- 0				23,554				- 0				23,554				- 0				- 0				23,554

						Other current assets								68,738				5,159				- 0				73,897				1,024				(1,363)

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
should be =q30 + 307 plug
				73,558

						Net assets released from restriction 								- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



								Total current assets						262,700				38,463				- 0				301,163				25,931				(1,363)				325,732								- 0



						Beneficial interest in healthcare entites								34,892				- 0				(3,060)				31,832				- 0				(31,832)				- 0

						Plant and equipment, net								220,966				7,495				- 0				228,461				- 0				- 0				228,461

						Pledges receivable, net of current portion								- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				5,025								5,025

						Assets limited as to use								6,576

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
Assets held in trust - BS trending report in Paragon				- 0				- 0				6,576				- 0				- 0				6,576

						Other noncurrent assets								62,858				19,288				(25,661)				56,485				- 0				- 0				56,485



								Total assets						$   587,992				$   65,246				$   (28,721)				$   624,517				$   30,956				$   (33,195)				$   622,279				$   743,077



		LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

				CURRENT LIABILITIES

						Accounts payable								$   55,175				$   4,517				$   - 0				$   59,692				$   1,670				$   (1,670)				$   59,692

						Accrued salaries and related benefits								31,905				1,276				- 0				33,181				- 0				- 0				33,181

						Government contract liability								3,207

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
From GL #2040-20500		

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
Assets held in trust - BS trending report in Paragon																				

Lasnier, Elizabeth: Lasnier, Elizabeth:
should be =q30 + 307 plug
		- 0				- 0				3,207				- 0				- 0				3,207

						Other accrued expenses								23,438				36,179				(25,661)				33,956				- 0				- 0				33,956

						Current maturities of long-term obligations								10,786				- 0				- 0				10,786				- 0				- 0				10,786



								Total current liabilities						124,511				41,972				(25,661)				140,822				1,670				(1,670)				140,822



				NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

						Long-term debt, net of current maturities								197,035				- 0				- 0				197,035				- 0				- 0				197,035								297,035

						Government contract liability, net of current portion								- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0

						Other noncurrent liabilities								93,035				17,858				- 0				110,893				- 0				- 0				110,893



								Total noncurrent liabilities						290,070				17,858				- 0				307,928				- 0				- 0				307,928



								Total liabilities						414,581				59,830				(25,661)				448,750				1,670				(1,670)				448,750				548,750



		NET ASSETS

						Without donor restrictions								149,529				5,416				(3,060)				151,885				5,404				(5,404)				151,885

						With donor restrictions								23,882				- 0				- 0				23,882				23,882				(23,882)				23,882

														- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0				- 0



								Total net assets						173,411				5,416				(3,060)				175,767				29,287				(29,287)				175,767				$   194,327



								Total liabilities and net assets						$   587,992				$   65,246				$   (28,721)				$   624,517				$   30,956				$   (30,956)				$   624,517





														$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   2,238				$   2,238

										Debt to equity without																2.55

										Debt to equity with  																																2.82

										Cash to LTD without																53%

										Cash to LTD with  																																				63%







 High level time  line:
– Negotiating Bloom contract with anticipated signature date of 11/1/2024
– First payment of approximately $2M due at that time
– Negotiating with BofA to have loan in place by 11/1/2024

• Initial escrow funding of $3M in November 2024
• Remaining escrow funding of $11.5M in June 2025
• Funds will be drawn as invoices paid

– Bloom project anticipated to come on line approximately March 2026

Time Line

5



Recommendations and Approvals

6

 Management recommends approval of the proposed borrowing
 District approval, as General Member of MarinHealth Medical Center, 

is required under Section 10.1(d) of the hospital’s bylaws.  



Discussion

7

QUESTIONS?



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 3 
 

  



 

 
MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO 2024-05 
RESOLUTION APPROVING MARINHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER LOAN FROM BANK OF 

AMERICA IN CONNECTION WITH BLOOM ENERGY FINANCING 

WHEREAS, Marin General Hospital dba MarinHealth Medical Center (“Hospital”), as borrower, 
and Bank of America (“Bank”), as lender, are parties to that certain Master Loan and Security Agreement 
dated as of August 2, 2018 (as amended, the “Master Agreement”), pursuant to which Bank and Hospital 
set forth the terms and conditions for equipment financings from time, each such financing to be set forth 
in a separate note to be executed by Bank and Hospital (“Note”);  

WHEREAS, Hospital management has recommended a 10-year Note in an amount not to exceed 
$15 million in order to finance its procurement of an energy production system from Bloom Energy as part 
of Hospital’s energy strategy, as presented to the Marin Healthcare District (“District”) in its Regular Board 
Meeting on October 8, 2024 (the “Bank Financing”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.1(d) of the Hospital Bylaws, the District, as the general 
member of Hospital, must approve, among things, any financing such as the Bank Financing that would 
cause Hospital’s debt to capitalization ratio to exceed 50%; 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of Hospital, 
the District, and the communities they serve to approve the Bank Financing.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of Directors that (i) the above 
recitals are true and correct, and incorporated into this Resolution, and (ii) the Bank Financing and any 
transaction documents or related documentation necessary to accomplish the Bank Financing are hereby 
approved pursuant to Section 10.1(d) of the Hospital Bylaws. 

REVIEWED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular Board Meeting held on October 8, 
2024, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Edward Alfrey, MD 
Chair of the Board 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jennifer Rienks, PhD 
Secretary of the Board 


	Agenda
	Minutes 
	Bloom Energy Borrowing Board 10-8-24 Powepoint - District Board.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Proposed $10M Borrowing For Bloom Energy Project
	Proposed $10M Key Considerations
	Proposed $10M Taxable Borrowing – Impact on Key Metrics
	Time Line
	Recommendations and Approvals
	Discussion

	Bloom Energy Borrowing Board 10-8-24 Powepoint - District Board.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Proposed of up to $15M Borrowing For Bloom Energy Project
	Proposed $15M Key Considerations
	Proposed $15M Taxable Borrowing – Impact on Key Metrics
	Time Line
	Recommendations and Approvals
	Discussion




